
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

626 GENEVA STREET 

LAKE GENEVA, WI 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY APRIL 15, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

Agenda 
 

   

1. Meeting called to order by Tom Hartz. 

 

2. Roll Call. 

 

3. Approve Minutes of the March 18, 2019 Plan Commission meeting as distributed. 

  

4. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, 

except for public hearing items.  Comments will be limited to five (5) minutes. 

 

5. Acknowledgment of Correspondence. 

 

6. Downtown Design Review: 

 

a. Application by Kat Davis, 1050 Cumberland Tr. Lake Geneva, for the request to install 

an on Building Sign and a Blade Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 231 Cook 

St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00253. 

 

b. Application by Comet Neon Inc., 1120 N. Ridge Ave. Lombard IL, 60148 for the request 

to install an on Building Sign and a Blade Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 

899 W. Main St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00253. 

 

c. Application by Dennis Dahl, 332 Cincinnati St., Spring Green, WI 53588, for the request 

to install an on Building Sign to the exterior of the property, located at 253 Center St., 

Suite 200, in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00283. 

 

d. Application by Carolyn Sharpe, W7772-5A Wisconsin Pkwy, Delavan, WI, 53155, for 

the request to install an on Building Sign to the exterior of the property and the 

monument sign, located at 252 Center St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, 

Tax Key No. ZOP00258. 

 

e. Application by Saverio & Elizabeth Spontella, 303 Town Center Blvd., Gilberts, IL 

60136, for the request to install an on Building Sign to the exterior of the property, 

located at 270 Broad St., in the Business Central (BC) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZOP00244. 

 



7. Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for the applicant, 

Chestnut Acres LLC, Mark Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the 

property Tax Key No. JG2500004 to create 4 buildable lots. The property is located at the north 

end of Williams Street and Hickory Lane in the Town of Geneva as identified on the certified 

survey map dated 7/6/2018 with revisions dated 3/18/19 for Tax Key No. JG2500004. 

 

8. Review and Recommendation of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Fairwyn SB, Inc., 875 

Townline Road, Unit 103, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for 7-duplex lot separation(s) in the Planned 

Development zoning classification to create individual lots as identified on the certified survey 

dated 3/12/19 for several Tax Key Nos. in the Symphony Bay Development – Tax Key Nos. 

ZSB00500 thru ZSB00503 and ZSB00516 thru ZSB00518. 

 

9. Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a General Development Plan (GDP) 

filed by Patrick & Rachel Lynch, 30715 Cedar Drive, Burlington, WI 53105, requesting to allow 

the razing and reconstruction of a new Single Family Home and to rebuild the structure closer to 

the lakeshore than the existing foundation. This request in addition would allow the new 

structure to be in-line with the neighboring dwellings. The property is located at 940 Maytag Rd., 

situated in Estate Residential (ER- 1) zoning district and to utilize the Single Family – 4 (SR-4) 

setbacks, Tax Key No. ZCE00005. 

 

10. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 

53115, requesting a (CUP) to Raze or Remove the existing building located at 832 Geneva 

Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. 

ZOP00252. 

 

11. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General 

Development Plan (GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., 

Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a Planned Development to construct a 5600 square foot 

commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business 

(CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

12. Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) filed by Lake Geneva Plaza, LLC., W3323 Lake Forest Lane, Lake Geneva, 

WI 53147, requesting a (CUP) to construct a Gas Station; Carwash; Convenience Store; & 

Restaurant located at 190 E. Main St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Planned Business (PB) 

zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA370600001. 

 

13. Adjournment. 
 

QUORUM OF CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS MAY BE PRESENT 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance in order to participate in this meeting, should be made to the City Clerk's office, in order for appropriate 

Accommodations. 

Posted 4/10/2019 

 



1 of 2 

March 18, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2019 – 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 

Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 

Roll Call.  Present: Mayor Hartz, Sarah Hill, Ted Horne, Ann Esarco, Michael Krajovic. Absent (Excused) Alderman 

Doug Skates, John Gibbs and Building and Zoning Administrator Walling.  Also Present: City Planner Slavney, City 

Attorney Draper, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant Follensbee 

 

Approve Minutes of the February 18
th

 Plan Commission meeting as distributed.  

Horne/ Esarco motion to approve.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. None. 

 

Acknowledgement of Correspondence.  

Correspondence was received from Doug & Kristie Powell, 1540 Lake Shore Drive, sharing their concerns for the zoning 

change at 1550 Lake Shore Drive. Correspondence was also received from Georgianna Kleiman, 60 East Monroe St, 

Chicago IL, sharing concerns for the zoning change at 1550 Lake Shore Drive. All correspondence has been distributed to 

the Plan Commission. 

 

 

Review and Recommendation of an Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) CSM for the applicant, Chestnut Acres 

LLC, Mark Larkin, 500 Stone Ridge Drive, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the property Tax Key No. JG2500004 to 

create 3 buildable lots. The property is located at the north end of Williams Street and Hickory Lane in the Town 

of Geneva as identified on the certified survey map dated 7/6/2018 with revisions dated 1/25/19 for Tax Key No. 

JG2500004. 

No applicant was present. Planner Slavney said the land division for 3 lots meet the requirements for the city of Lake 

Geneva and city staff has spoken to the surveyor, Paul VanHenkelum, asking for modifications on the CSM and the 

signature page before going to the City Council meeting. 

 

Hill/ Horne motion to approve the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction CSM contingent upon the corrections needed on the CSM 

with the Town Signatures and include all staff recommendations. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Review and Recommendation of a Certified Survey Map (CSM) for Fairwyn SB, Inc., 875 Townline Road, Unit 

103, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, for the duplex lot separation in the Planned Development zoning classification to 

create individual lots for units 101 & 103 Cadence Circle as identified on the certified survey dated 1/17/19 for Tax 

Key No. ZB00509-1 & ZB00509-2. 

Brian Pollard, 875 Townline Road, Suite 103, Lake Geneva, presented his request. Slavney said the code allows the 

separation of a twin house when a lot line goes down the common wall and is owner occupied. Slavney stated this request 

is consistent with our zoning requirements. 

 

Esarco/ Krajovic motion to approve the CSM  for duplex lot separation and include all staff recommendations and fact 

finding in the affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by Geneva 

Properties, LLC, 612 Wells Street, Suite F, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, requesting to allow the addition of a 

mechanical room to the exterior of the multi-family structure located at 695 S. Lake Shore Drive, located in Two-

Family Residential – 6 (TR-6) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZA134700001. 



2 of 2 

March 18, 2019 Plan Commission Minutes 

 

Matt Kuehl, 615 Wells Street, Suite F, presented his request. Mayor Hartz asked if boiler room would within the required 

setback. Mr. Kuehl verified it would be within the setback. Commissioner Esarco asked if the boiler room would be 

hidden by shrubs. Kuehl confirmed there is a tree line and shrubs. The entire building will be resided with same material. 

 

Krajovic/Horne motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

  

Hill/Horne motion to approve the CUP to allow the addition of a mechanical room within the current setback and include 

all staff recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for a Conditional Use Permit filed by CDS Investments, 

LLC, for the property located at 1550 Lake Shore Drive, to utilize the Single Family – 4 (SR-4) zoning in the Estate 

Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning, to raze and rebuild a portion of the Single Family Residence, and small addition to 

the front entry Tax Key No. ZLM00048. 

Todd Cauffman, Lowell Custom Homes, 401 Geneva National Avenue, presented the request. Slavney was concerned 

with the cantilevered addition and explained the policy the city has followed regarding impervious surfaces and building 

coverage. Cauffman addressed the letters of concern from the Powell’s and Georgi Kleinman. 

 

Speaker #1: Denise Pecora, 1550 Lake Shore Drive, shared her thoughts, stating they only want to make the property 

better.  

 

Hill/ Horne motion to close the Public Hearing. Motion carried unanimously. 

  

Hartz/Krajovic motion to approve the CUP to allow the razing and rebuild of a portion of a Single Family home and a 

small entry addition with SR-4 zoning in an ER-1 zoning district, to include maintenance of the front and side setbacks,  

the removal of the 2’ cantilevered overhang and all staff recommendations and fact finding in the affirmative. 

Roll Call:  Hartz, Hill, Horne, Esarco, Krajovic “yes.”  Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a (CUP) to Raze or 

Remove the existing building located at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, located in Central Business 

(CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Hill motion to continue the Public Hearing to the April Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Continuation of the Public Hearing and Recommendation on an application for the General Development Plan 

(GDP) filed by House Around the Corner LLC., 3389 South Shore Dr., Delavan, WI 53115, requesting a Planned 

Development to construct a 5600 square foot commercial building at 832 Geneva Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147, 

located in Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00252. 

 

Applicant has requested to continue the Public Hearing. 

 

Hartz/Horne motion to continue the Public Hearing to the April Plan Commission meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 Adjournment.  Hill/Horne motion to adjourn at 6:45 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

        

/s/ Brenda Follensbee, Building & Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL MINUTES UNTIL APPROVED BY THE PLAN COMMISSION 



STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install an On Building Sign & Blade Sign to the exterior of the building above the public right of 

way located at 231 cook Street Tax Key No. ZOP00253.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the sign installation request as submitted. 

 

 

Applicant: 

Kat Davis 

1050 Cumberland Tr. 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 

231 Cook Street  

Downtown Design Review for 2 Signs 

building and blade signs 

Tax Key No. ZOP00253 

Agenda Item #6a 







STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install an On Building Sign & Blade Sign to the exterior of the building above the public right of 

way located at 899 W. Main Street Tax Key No. ZOP00253.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the sign installation request as submitted. 

 

 

 

Applicant: 

Comet Neon, Inc 

1120 N Ridge Ave 

Lombardi, IL 60148 

Request: 

899 W. Main Street  

Downtown Design Review for 2 Signs 

building and blade sign 

Tax Key No. ZOP00253 

Agenda Item #6b 















STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install an On Building Sign to the exterior of the building located at 253 Center Street Tax Key 

No. ZOP00283.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the sign installation request as submitted. 

 

 

 

Applicant: 

Dennis Dahl 

332 Cincinnati St 

Spring Green, WI 53588 

Request: 

253 Center Street  

Downtown Design Review for a Sign 

Tax Key No. ZOP00283 

Agenda Item #6c 









STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install an On Building Sign & Monument Sign to the exterior of the building at 252 Center Street 

Tax Key No. ZOP00258.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the signs installation request as submitted. 

 

 

 

Applicant: 

Carolyn Sharpe 

W7772-5A Wisconsin Pkwy 

Delavan, WI 53155 

Request: 

252 Center Street  

Downtown Design Review for 2 Signs 

building and on monument sign 

Tax Key No. ZOP00258 

Agenda Item #6d 









STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting an application for Downtown Design Review for the request to 

install an On Building Sign to the exterior of the building above the public right of way located 

at 270 Broad Street Tax Key No. ZOP00244.  

 

The City reviews all exterior alteration in the CB zoning district to confirm that they conform to 

the Downtown Design standards, particularly quantity, size, and color requirements.  

 

Proposed colors correspond within the permitted downtown guidelines. 

 

Staff Recommendations:  

The colors submitted have been reviewed and comply with the Historic Colors of the historic 

color palette. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the sign request as submitted. 

 

 

 

Applicant: 

Saverio & Elizabeth Spontella 

303 Town Center Blvd. 

Gilberts, IL 60136 

Request: 

270 Broad Street  

Downtown Design Review for a Sign 

Tax Key No. ZOP00244 

Agenda Item #6e 









 1 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 22, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description:  

This request is to approve an Extraterritorial Zoning Plat review for the Certified Survey Map 

CSM creating 4 buildable lots located in the Town of Geneva at Tax Key No. JG2500004. 

 

This request is to approve the proposed Certified Survey Map dated 1/25/2019 for the property 

located at the north end of Williams St. and Hickory Ln. The land separation will create 4 lots 

with this request. 

 Lot 1 = 1.1 AC. 

 Lot 2 = 1.6 AC. 

 Lot 3 = 3.1 AC. 

 Lot 4 = 6.3 AC. 

 

The parcel included in this request does not currently have any buildings on the property. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Exterritorial Zoning request (ETZ)  

As part of the consideration of the requested ETZ, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed ETZ 

review. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed  

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the Exterritorial 

Zoning request (ETZ): as submitted, subject to approval Walworth County Land Use 

Zoning. 

Agenda Item: 7 

Applicant: 

Chestnut Acres LLC, Mark Larkin 

500 Stone Ridge Dr 

Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: ETZ Extraterritorial Zoning CSM 

review for the Town of Geneva creating 4 

buildable lots Tax Key No. JG2500004 













STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

This request is to approve (7) - Duplex Certified Survey Maps (CSM) to create 14 duplex lots on 

(7) – CSM’s for a duplex structures in the Symphony Bay subdivision. 

The result of these CSM’s will create (7) - two unit lots that have a zero lot line for a duplex 

building. Both of the units will have their own parcels which will comply with all of the 

minimum standards of the Planned Development (PD) zoning. 

This request is to approve the proposed (7) Certified Survey Maps dated 3/12/2019 for the 

properties located in the Symphony Bay subdivision. 

 

Staff Review Comments: 

The proposed CSM’s have been submitted by staff to the Public Works & Utilities for review for 

compliance or concerns and none were identified as needed to be addressed with this land 

division. 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed (7) - Certified Survey Maps (CSM): 

As part of the consideration of the requested (7) - CSM’s, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed (7) - 

CSM’s. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the proposed (7) - Certified Survey Maps (CSM): 

Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the (7) – CSM’s as 

submitted. 

 

Applicant: 

Fairwyn SB, Inc. 

875 Townline Rd. unit 103 

Lake Geneva, WI. 53147 

Request:  

Create (7) - Duplex Certified Survey Maps 

(CSM)  

Symphony Bay Subdivision 

Tax Key Nos. ZSB00500 thru ZSB00503 and 

ZSB00516 thru ZSB00518 

Agenda Item: 8 





































1 

 

STAFF REPORT 

To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date: April 15, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Description: 

The applicant is submitting a request for a General Development Plan (GDP) that would allow for the 

applicant to raze the existing Single Family Residence (SFR) and rebuild the home closer to the lake to 

be in-line with the neighboring properties utilizing setbacks for the Single Family – 4 (SR-4) in the 

Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning, located at 940 Maytag Rd. Tax Key No. ZCE00005 

 

Action by the Plan Commission: 

Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested GDP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed GDP; 

 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for GDP; and, 

 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the GDP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed GDP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 

fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

Applicant: 

Patrick & Rachel Lynch 

30715 Cedar Dr.  

Burlington, WI 53105  

Request:  

General Development Plan (GDP) 

Raze the Single Family Home and rebuild closer 

to the lakeshore at 940 Maytag Rd. 

Tax Key No. ZCE00005 

 

Agenda Item: 9 



2 

 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) maintains the desired consistency of land uses, 

land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) outweigh all 

potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the purposes, 

goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, 

and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not in harmony with the 

purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning 

Ordinance, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to 

official notice by the City. 

3.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) in its proposed location, and as depicted on the 

required site plan does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the 

character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public 

improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, 

safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a 

result of the implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan 

or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 

notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) does not maintain the desired consistency of 

land uses, land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 

property. 

5.  The proposed General Development Plan (GDP) is not located in an area that will be adequately 

served by, and will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 

services provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed General Development Plan (GDP) do not outweigh 

all potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the 



3 

 

Applicant’s proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such 

impacts. 

 

Staff Recommendation on the Proposed General Development Plan (GDP): 

If the Plan Commission members feel the submittal is acceptable - 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed General 

Development Plan (GDP) as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 





Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

 
 
 
 
 
 
March 8th, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Lake Geneva 
Building and Community Development Department 
626 Geneva Street  
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
November 9th, 2018 
 
Re: 940 Maytag Road (Ceylon Court) 
Lakeshore setback 
 
 
Cover Letter   
GDP General Development Plan    
 
 
 
Dear City Plan Commission members: 
 
Lake Geneva Architects is currently working with Mr. and Mrs. Patrick Lynch to design a new primary 
residence at 940 Maytag Road (Ceylon Ct.) The property is currently zoned ER-1 and we will be seeking a 
GDP to use SR-4 side-yard setbacks along with the average shore-yard setbacks.     
 
Please find attached The application General Development Plan (GDP) and review packet containing:  
 

1. Location map.    (11x17 Land Use Map.)   
2. Map of property.    (11x17 GIS.)  
3. Written justification.    (Project description from LGA.)  
4. GDP plan drawing.  (11x17 Site plan.)  
5. Conceptual landscape. (11x17 Site plan.)  
6. Signage plan.   (No signage requested.)  
7. Written justification.  (Project description from LGA.)  

 
x. Plans and preliminary elevations.  

For clarity, we have also included (4) elevations of the proposed residence.    
 
If you have any questions prior to our meeting, please feel free to call or email.   
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
Jason R. Bernard 
Lake Geneva Archtects 
Jason@LakeGenevaArchitects.com 
262.248.1400 x11 
 





"' 

! IJ : htllWIIIfl fl f(a!Y ( r ( t . ~ 
1

:~SM 1240 ,. cr~~£VLQ.r~g ----- 2 1 --
' I 

1 
II - ' · .124000004 -. CE-'f"~\.. ' -· 

940 Maytag Rd. 
City of Lake Geneva. 

WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 
0 35 70 140 210 280 350 

~-.·- I I ' 1 
Feet 

Geodetic Grid 
North North 

\1 
~oRTII cou . 

1 inch = 83 feet 

Author: 

Map Produced on: 3/9/2019 

Wisconsin State Plane Coordinate System, South Zone 
Horizontal Datum: NAD27 

'1.~ t ' ' ?> ·~ / · .:::,. Walworth County Information Technology Department 
Land Information Division 

\\' I S C 0 N S I :-.; 

1800 County Trunk NN 
E!khom, Wisconsin 53121 -1001 
DISCLAIMER: THE INFORMAT ION PROVIDED ON THIS MAP HAS BEEN PRODUCED 
AND PROCESSED FROM SOURCES BELIEVED TO 3E RELIABLE. NO WARRANTY, 
EXPRESSED OR IMPL IED, IS MADE REGARDING ACCURACY, ADEQUACY, COMPLETENESS, 
LEGALITY, RELIABILITY OR USEFULNESS OF THIS INFORMATION. THE INFORMATION 
CONTA INED HEREIN WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS AN OFRCIAL DOCUME NT. 

7A1240000J:l:::.--·- ~---------.. ----- ~~-Ol.TfLO I .,_..-- 21!>06' ......____. 

--~----------' ~ ·.. \ -<:: ~-L'-" 1 I i .. LOT 2 _,---

B!I.T'899.-2__l 122,DD' ·= 
~-----21:~'= 00033 

~- -.._ -... '.f Ill• 

"~ "' { 10 ~-:'0~~l~-~t-%· 
'\ - - "' II ... .. __ e ..... J 

... ... ,~ .s-/~--y~~-~zc ..... ~-~- , .'\._ 

~--" --~ 

"'\-~ ~1 "· \ 
\~ \ ~ 
~ \ $, 

" \ 
~ \ . 

' d tf>'~ "J{ ~) I 
\ ~ '4> I 

\ ~'& t 
~, ~~ .~ MITCHELL - - -

11 

-
~ 2J:E OD~\ 

ZCE I .___ 

~ 
UJ 
0... 
0 
0::: 
a.. 

tJ 
UJ 
~ c:c 
::::> 
V) 

u. 
0 
c... 



Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Existing 
 
As shown in the attached aerial photos, the neighborhood residences along this stretch of the lake do not 
meet the 100’ shore-yard setback.  When compared to the adjoining properties, 940 Maytag Rd. is set much 
farther back from the lake.  
     

940 Maytag Rd. 

       
 

 
      

940 Maytag Rd. 



Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

 
Justification / request: 
 
The Lake Geneva Zoning Ordinance does not specifically allow the averaging of shore-yard setbacks like 
many other communities around the lake.  However, it does allow the averaging of neighborhood front yard 
setbacks. The intent was to help establish a cohesive neighborhood block.   
 
We are requesting to use an average shore-yard setback for this particular property.  It would accomplish the 
same cohesive “lakefront neighborhood” that is in the spirit of the Lake Geneva zoning ordinance.  We 
believe that it would be appropriate and create a more consistent lakefront from this very visible location on 
the lake.  It would also continue a historical pattern of development and further maintain the quality and 
character of the Lake Geneva community.   
 
For reference:   
 
Sec. 98-404     Yard Setback Adjustments:  
(1) b Averaging of the front yard setbacks is allowed if greater than 50% of the adjacent principal structures 
on the same block or street face do not follow the required front setback. In a similar spirit to this rule, as the 
existing neighboring properties do not meet the 100 foot setback allowing setback averaging between the 
adjacent properties would allow a larger front setback and would help unify the appearance of the buildings 
along the lake at this area. 
 
 
Neighboring setbacks: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

 
Site plan: 
 
Below is a portion of the proposed site plan.   Please note that there are two “average” setback lines.   
One average setback for the house (anything under roof) and,  
One average setback for decks and patios.   
The face of the screened porch is at the proposed “average house” setback line and,.   
The deck extends up to the “average deck / patio” setback line.  
 
Please also note that: 
 
A) The new residence is not being built in an area of steep grade (12% or greater). Steep grades are shown 
by the green area on the site plan below. 
 
B) The views from the adjacent houses will also not be reduced by the new house at the averaged lakefront 
setback.  
 
C) The house is designed to provide a greater distance to the side property lines than the side setbacks 
require.   
 
D)  There will be a wooden access deck stair that extends beyond the setback line on the SouthEast end 
(adjoining the neighbors.)  This was to developed to keep the foot traffic off the landscaping area and within  
the covered porch.  
 
 

 



Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

 
 
 
 
Existing views from 940 Maytag Road (Ceylon Court) 
 
From the shore-yard of 940, it becomes very apparent that the home is set back an uncomfortable distance.  
It is set 35-45’ further back than its neighbors.   
 
 
 
 
940 Maytag Rd.  Looking WEST towards neighbor.  (Looking at 950 Maytag Rd.) 
 
 

 
 
 
   
 
 
 

940 Maytag Rd.   Looking EAST towards neighbor.  (Looking at 930 Maytag Rd.) 
 
 

 
 
 



Lake Geneva Architects       |       201 Broad Street       |       Lake Geneva, WI  53147 

 
 
 
In conclusion: 
 
The use of an average shore-yard setback for this particular property would achieve the same cohesive 
“lakefront neighborhood” that is in the spirit of the Lake Geneva zoning ordinance.  It would also continue a 
historical pattern of development and further maintain the quality and character of the Lake Geneva 
community.  
 
The existing neighborhood residences along this stretch of the lake do not meet the 100’ shore-yard setback.  
When compared to the adjoining properties, 940 Maytag Rd. is set much farther back from the lake. 
 
The new residence is not being built in an area of steep grade (12% or greater). 
 
The views from the adjacent houses will not be reduced by the new house being located at the averaged 
lakefront setback.  
 
The house is designed to provide a greater distance to the side property lines than the side setbacks require. 
    
Utilizing the (2) differing “average” setback lines will allow us to incorporate the idea of stepping the building 
in height.  The bulk of the building’s massing would be “stepped” back to give it a less dominant presence.  
This assists in creating a more “human scale” in regards to the massing of the home.  
 
We appreciate your willingness to review this proposal.   If you have any questions or need further 
information, please feel free to call or email.    
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Jason R. Bernard 







ZONING RESEARCH

ER-1 TO SR-4 ZONING

FRONT OR

STREET-YARD

INTRUSIONS

REAR OR

SIDE-YARD

INTRUSIONS

REAR-YARD

INTRUSIONS

SITE LEGEND

LYNCH & ASSOCIATES

5482 S. WESTRIDGE DR. 

NEW BERLIN, WI. 53151

PHONE (262) 248-3697

SURVEYOR

ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, LLC

LOT 5

LOT 6

LOT 4

Water Elevation=

864.44'

5/31/18

CEYLON

COURT DRIVE

(50' Right of Way)

GENEVA LAKE

SCALE:  1" = 10'

SITE PLAN

T
R

U
E

N
O

R
T

H

SCHEME M4

NEIGHBORING

RESIDENCE

Patio

Deck

Deck

NEW RESIDENCE

OUTLINE OF EXISTING

RESIDENCE TO BE

DEMOLISHED

NEIGHBORING

RESIDENCE

AREA OF STEEP

GRADES

VIEW

VIEW VIEW

VIEW

VIEW

IMPERVIOUS

CALCULATIONS

DESIGN SET

L
Y

N
C

H
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

C
E

REVISIONS:

3.8.18
DATE:

PERMIT SET

CONSTRUCTION

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I

-

-

-

C
E

Y
L
O

N
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
D

R
I
V

E

-

-

L
A

K
E

 
 
G

E
N

E
V

A
 
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

2
0

1
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
.

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I
 
5

3
1

4
7

2
6

2
.
2

4
8

.
1

4
0

0

A1



P
L
A

N

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"

FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

SCHEME "M4"

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

AREA

PWDR

SCREEN

PORCH

MUD

ROOM

MASTER

GARAGE

LAUNDRY /

STORAGE

HALL

GARAGE

STORAGE

M. CLOSET

BATH

HALL

COVERED

PORCH

M4.1

DESIGN SET

L
Y

N
C

H
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

C
E

REVISIONS:

3.8.18
DATE:

PERMIT SET

CONSTRUCTION

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I

-

-

-

C
E

Y
L
O

N
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
D

R
I
V

E

-

-

L
A

K
E

 
 
G

E
N

E
V

A
 
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

2
0

1
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
.

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I
 
5

3
1

4
7

2
6

2
.
2

4
8

.
1

4
0

0



P
L
A

N

N
O

R
T

H

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"

SECOND FLOOR PLAN 

SCHEME "M4"

T

R

U

E

N

O

R

T

H

HALL

LOFT / BUNKS

HALL

BEDROOM #3

WIC

BEDROOM #2

HALL

OFFICE

BATH

LAUNDRY

LAV'S

LOFT / BUNKS

HALL HALL

TLT.

BATH

M4.2

DESIGN SET

L
Y

N
C

H
 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

C
E

REVISIONS:

3.8.18
DATE:

PERMIT SET

CONSTRUCTION

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I

-

-

-

C
E

Y
L
O

N
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
D

R
I
V

E

-

-

L
A

K
E

 
 
G

E
N

E
V

A
 
 
A

R
C

H
I
T

E
C

T
S

2
0

1
 
B

R
O

A
D

 
S

T
.

L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
,
 
W

I
 
5

3
1

4
7

2
6

2
.
2

4
8

.
1

4
0

0










	1. April 15 2019 Agenda
	3. March 18 2019 Plan Commission Minutes
	6.a. 231 Cook Street Downtown Design
	6.b. 899 W Main Street Downtown Design
	6.c. 253 Center Street Downtown Design
	6.d. 252 Center Street Downtown Design
	6.e. 270 Broad Street Downtown Design
	7. Chestnut Acres ETJ CSM
	8. Symphony Bay CSM's
	9. 940 Maytag Road GDP

